
 

The mission of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority is to provide safe, secure, efficient and low-cost air 
transportation service to the 12-county region that Syracuse Hancock International Airport currently serves.  The 
Authority seeks to stimulate air service, economic development, trade and tourism by focusing on the shared goals 
of its stakeholders:  more service to more destinations, lower operating costs and increased non-aeronautical 
revenue. The Authority recognizes that the Syracuse Hancock International Airport is a gateway to the central New 
York region and beyond and seeks to optimize customer service and exceed customer expectations with continuous 
improvements to the terminal building and public-use facilities. 
 

 
 

 
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
Friday, March 15, 2019 11:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m. 

Syracuse Hancock International Airport 
Board Room 

 
 
1. Roll Call (2 Minutes) 
 
2. Reading and Approval of Minutes from the February 1, 2019 Regular (2 Min) 
 
3. Executive Session (30 Minutes) 
 
4. New Business (25 Minutes) 

 Resolution approving the fiscal year end 2018 draft audit of the Syracuse Regional 
Airport Authority 

 Resolution amending Ethics Policy for the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
 Resolution amending policy for members regarding written and electronic 

communications concerning the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
 

5. Management Report (15 Minutes) 
 

6. Committee Reports and other updates (10 Minutes) 
 

 Finance Committee 
 Governance Committee 
 Audit Committee 

 
7. Adjournment 
 
 
*Bolded items = materials provided in packet 



 

1 
 

 

 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

February 1, 2019 

Pursuant to notice duly given and posted, the board meeting of the Syracuse Regional Airport 
Authority was called to order on Friday, February 1, 2019 at 11:06 a.m. in the Syracuse Regional 
Airport Authority Board Room located in the Syracuse Hancock International Airport by Chair, 
Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano.  
 
Members Present:                                    Members Absent: 
                          
Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano – Chair   Mr. Kenneth Kinsey 
Mr. Bill Fisher      Mr. Michael Quill 
Dr. Shiu-Kai Chin  
Dr. Donna DeSiato (11:07 a.m.)  
Mr. John B. Johnson, Jr.    
Mr. Michael Lazar 
Mr. Robert Simpson 
Mr. Damian Ulatowski 
 
Also Present: 
 
Ms. Christina Callahan    
Mr. Trent Amond 
Mr. John Carni 
Ms. Joanne Clancy 
Mr. Brian Dorman 
Ms. Debi Marshall 
Ms. Linda Ryan  
Ms. Jennifer Sweetland   
Mr. R. John Clark 
Mr. John McCann 
 
Roll Call 

As noted, all Board members were present, except Mr. Kenneth Kinsey, Mr. Michael Quill and 
the current, city-appointed, vacant seat on the SRAA board. 
 
Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano, Chair 

Chair Gagliano started by welcoming everyone to the scheduled Regular Meeting of the Board at 
11:06 a.m.  

 



2 
 

Reading and Approval of the Minutes 

Having no objections or additions to the minutes from the December 7, 2018 Regular Meeting 
and the January 11, 2019 Special Meeting minutes, a motion was made by Mr. Lazar and 
seconded by Mr. Fisher and the minutes were unanimously approved. 
 
The motion was approved:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion of ABO 
training) 

Executive Session 

Chair Gagliano made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a variety of matters 
pertaining to the employment history of particular persons or corporations and/or the 
employment of particular persons or corporations by the Authority.  

The motion was approved by Dr. Chin and seconded by Dr. DeSiato.  Board members 
went into executive session at 11:09 a.m. 
 
The motion was approved:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training) 

Executive session ended at 11:25 p.m. No action was taken. 
 

Management Report 
 

Executive Director Callahan briefed the board regarding recent events and updates in each 
department.  She introduced new employee and Marketing and Communications Specialist, Matt 
Szwejbka.  Director Callahan also thanked Elana Essig, Management Assistant for the design 
work done to update the look of the management report. 
 
Key project updates and various metrics were discussed along with the status of the terminal 
improvement project remaining punch list items. A discussion ensued regarding promoting an air 
service development campaign to ensure that the public knows that SYR has experienced 
double-digit growth each month in the past year and is aware of new non-stop markets and also 
seasonal markets.   
 
Director Callahan congratulated Linda Ryan for passing the test and receiving her Certified 
Member status (C.M.) through AAAE.  A new shuttle bus has arrived at the SYR Airport for 
various uses.  Aira (service for individuals with visual impairments) launched on February 1st.  
Reporting on the use of this service in the SYR airport will be presented to the board in the 
future.  A new payroll system is being researched and will be implemented by July 1st.  SRAA 
established a new email address on the website: CivilRights@syrairport.org for use by the public 
regarding ADA and Title VI Grievance Policy and Procedures.  The Airport Accessibility 
Committee will begin Quarterly meetings in March and include management, airport tenants and 
local advocacy groups.  A food truck luncheon was held for the government services workers 
impacted by the government shutdown as well other breakfast, lunch items and gift cards 
donated by members of the board and staff.  Executive Director Callahan congratulated Jennifer 
Sweetland, Director of Marketing, Communications and Air Service Development for all of her 

mailto:CivilRights@syrairport.org


3 
 

hard work on our new advertising program that has been successfully launched.  As of this date, 
eight contracts have already been signed in 2019.   
 
Recent Personnel/Recruitment 
 
Director of Terminal/Landside Operations - Dennis Mathers promoted  
Terminal Crew Leader (2 positions) - Andrew Baker and Brian Higgs hired 
Airport Operations Specialist - Aaron Harris hired  
Marketing & Communications Specialist - Matt Szwejbka hired  
Airport Fleet Manager - Tony Geruso hired to SRAA 
Payroll Assistant - Interviews being conducted 
Asst. Dir. of Terminal/Landside Operations - Review of candidates in progress 
Airport Welcoming Officer – Awaiting civil service approval of position 
 
Executive Director Callahan stated that this will be her last board meeting.  She thanked the staff 
and the board. 
 
New Business 

Resolution electing William P. Fisher as Vice-Chair of the Board of the Syracuse 
Regional Airport Authority 
Executive Director Callahan explained the terms of electing the Vice-Chair to the board. 
There was no further discussion regarding the resolution.  Mr. Fisher stated that his 
intention is to serve as Vice Chair until a succession plan is in place for another person to 
move up to the ranks of the board and ultimately become Vice Chair and then Chair. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lazar and seconded by Dr. DeSiato to approve this 
resolution. 
 
The resolution was adopted:  6 ayes, 0 nays, 2 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training and Mr. Fisher abstaining) 

 
Resolution amending public access to Records Policy to appoint Chief Financial 
Officer as the FOIL Appeals Officer 
Executive Director Callahan noted the current process for FOIL appeals and the need to 
move the FOIL Appeals Officer role under the CFO’s responsibilities. There was no 
further discussion regarding the resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Dr. DeSiato and seconded by Dr. Chin to approve this resolution. 
 
The resolution was adopted:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training) 

 

 



4 
 

Resolution Designating the Chief Financial Officer as the Secretary of the Board of 
the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
Executive Director Callahan noted the current process and need to move the Secretary of 
the Board role under the CFO’s responsibilities. There was no further discussion 
regarding the resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Dr. Chin and seconded by Mr. Fisher to approve this resolution. 
 
The resolution was adopted:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training) 

Resolution authorizing the engagement of search firm to fill Executive Director 
position 
Mr. Lazar explained the selection process by the Search Committee to recommend a 
search firm to the board. There was no further discussion regarding the resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ulatowski and seconded by Dr. Chin to approve this 
resolution. 
 
The resolution was adopted:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training) 

Resolution approving the 2019 slate of members of the standing committees of the 
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
The Board Development Committee reviewed the standing SRAA Committee members 
for 2019. Mr. Fisher noted that when the SRAA began, the Chair had the authority to 
name the committee members, as things moved forward, the Bylaws were changed to 
have the board make the decision on who would be on committees.  Mr. Fisher also noted 
that all board members are welcome to contact the chair to show their interest in 
becoming a committee member on any committee. There was no further discussion 
regarding the resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Gagliano and seconded by Mr. Lazar to approve this 
resolution. 
 
The resolution was adopted:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion 
of ABO training) 

Chair Gagliano notified the board that the SRAA will be awarded with the Onondaga Historical 
Association Medal on May 9, 2019.   
 
Committee Reports 

Board Development Committee and Search Committee updates: 
Mr. Stephen Baldwin, of Stephen Baldwin Associates, thanked the board and presented a history 
of their previous similar Executive level recruiting activities with airports and an overview of the 
plan for the CEO Search and information gathering process to ensure the best cultural fit to the 
SRAA.  The Search Committee will bring the recommendations to the board. 



5 
 

No other committee reports were given. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no other topics brought to the board, a motion was made by Mr. Lazar and seconded by 
Dr. DeSiato to adjourn the meeting.  
 
The resolution was adopted:  7 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Mr. Simpson awaiting completion of 
ABO training) 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:15 p.m.  







































































































































{H3563750.1}  
 

   Resolution No.    2019 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR END 2018 
DRAFT AUDIT OF THE SYRACUSE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY  

 

 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York, 

2011 and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as amended (collectively 

the "Enabling Act"); and 

  WHEREAS, Section 2799-vvv of the Enabling Act requires that the accounts of the 

Authority be subject to the supervision of the State Controller and that an annual audit be 

performed by an independent certified public accountant; and 

WHEREAS, in compliance with said provision of the Enabling Act, the Authority 

engaged the independent certified public accounting firm of D'Arcangelo & Co. to audit the 

Authority's accounts and prepare a draft audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, D'Arcangelo & Co. performed such audit and prepared a draft audit for 

Fiscal Year End 2018; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with its meeting on February 28, 2018, the Audit Committee 

reviewed the draft audit and conferred with said auditors, and has recommended that the 

Authority Board approve the draft audit for Fiscal Year End 2018.  

WHEREAS, D'Arcangelo & Co. further presented the draft audit for Fiscal Year End 

2018 to the Board at its March 15, 2019 meeting of the Board and responded to questions posed 

by Board members. 

NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon,  



{H3563750.1}  
 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

hereby approves and adopts the draft audit for the Authority’s Fiscal Year End 2018 prepared by 

D'Arcangelo & Co.; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 
 
 

Resolution Adopted Date: March __, 2019. 

Vote: Ayes:          Nays:          Abstentions:         . 

Signed:                                                                              . 
    Secretary 



Resolution No. __ 2019 

{H3466678.2}  

RESOLUTION AMENDING ETHICS POLICY FOR  
THE SYRACUSE REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the “Authority”) is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 (the “Enabling Act”) and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York public Authorities Law, as 

amended; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has duly adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to each officer, 

member and employee of the Authority pursuant to Section 2824(1) of the New York Public 

Authorities Law, as amended; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority last amended its Code of Ethics by Resolution No. 37 of 2018 

at its November 9, 2018 meeting and since that time the Authority’s Governance Committee at 

its February 21, 2019 meeting discussed with Authority management representatives certain 

proposed additional changes to the Authority’s Code of Ethics; and 

 WHEREAS, the Governance Committee has recommended that the Code of Ethics be 

further amended as shown on the draft amended Code of Ethics annexed hereto. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, it is hereby 

 RESOLVED, by the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority that the 

Authority’s Code of Ethics be further amended to include the changes as shown on the draft 

amended Code of Ethics annexed to this Resolution. 

Resolution Adopted Date: March __, 2019 

Vote: Ayes ____ Nays: ____ Abstentions: ____ 

Signed:______________________ 
  Secretary 
 



1  

 

 
 

SYRACUSE REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

CODE OF ETHICS 
 

ARTICLE I PURPOSE AND CONSTRUCTION 
 

Section 1.1 This Code of Ethics is applicable to officers, members, staff and employees of 
the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority, is adopted as a supplement to the provisions of Article 18 of 
the New York General Municipal Law and the City of Syracuse Code of Ethics and shall be construed to 
give effect to that law and local law and its purposes. 

 
ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS 

 

Section 2.1 For purposes of this Code of Ethics, the following terms are defined as 
follows: 

 
1. Authority shall mean the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority. 

 
2. City shall mean the City of Syracuse. 

 
3. Officer, member, staff or employee shall mean any officer, member, staff or 

employee of the Authority, paid or unpaid. 
 

4. Agency shall include any board, commissioner, authority, office, 
committee, department, branch, bureau of other administrative subdivision of the 
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority. 

 
5. Relative shall mean a spouse, child, parent, or sibling of the officer, member, 

staff or employee of the Authority, or a person claimed as a dependent on the officer’s or 
employee’s latest individual income tax return. 

 
6. Vendor shall mean any individual, organization, or entity that has a contract to 

provide or perform services of any kind with the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority.



2  

ARTICLE III CODE OF ETHICS 
 

Section 3.1 There is hereby established and adopted a Code of Ethics containing 
standards of conduct for officers, members, staff and employees of the Syracuse Regional Airport 
Authority. 

 
Section 3.2 All officers, members, staff or employees of the Authority shall adhere to the 

following standards: 
 

1. General prohibition.  Authority officers, members, staff or employees shall not 
use their official position or office, or take or fail to take any action, in a manner which they 
know or have reason to know may result in a personal financial benefit for any of the following 
persons: 

 
a. The Authority officer, member, staff or employee; 

 
b. The outside employer or business of an Authority officer, member, staff 

or employee if the officer, member, staff or employee’s outside employment compensation 
or business income would be affected by the action; 

 
c. A relative, where the action would affect them to a greater degree than 

the general public or a class of individuals similarly situated, including in the process of 
employment, recruitment, hiring, promotion, and discipline. 

 
2. Secondary Employment. No Authority employee may be employed by a Vendor 

engaged to perform services as a contractor or subcontractor for a Vendor while employed by the 
Authority, with the exception of rideshare, transportation network companies, and ground 
transportation contractors as long as not working at the airport.

    
3. Disclosure and recusal.  Authority officers, members, staff or employees 

 
a. To the extent they know or should know thereof, publicly disclose to 

the appropriate Authority officer or agency, the nature of any potential conflict of 
interest between their official duties with the Authority and any outside interest; and 

 
b. Promptly recuse themselves from any debate, discussion, decisions or 

action of any matter before the Authority or agency when acting on the matter, or failing 
to act on the matter, could reasonably be expected to be more beneficial financially to 
any of the persons listed in Section 3.2(1) above, than it would be to any member of the 
general public. 

 
4. Revolving door.  Persons who have served as officers, members, staff or 

employees of the Authority shall neither, after the termination of such service or employment, 
appear before the Authority or any agency of the Authority, nor render 



3  

services on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or association, in relation to any case, 
proceeding or application with respect to which the officer, member, staff or employee was 
directly concerned or in which they personally participated during the period of their service or 
employment of which was under their active consideration, until the case, proceeding or 
application have been finally disposed of or for a period of two (2) years from the date of 
separation from Authority service or employment, whichever is earlier; nor shall the officer, 
member, staff or employee receive or agree to receive any compensation with respect to such 
matter. 

 
5. Gifts. 

 

a. No Authority officer, member, staff or employee shall directly or 
indirectly solicit any gift, or accept or receive any gift, having a value of seventy- five 
dollars ($75.00) or more, whether the gift is in the form of money, property, service, 
loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or in any other form under 
circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to 
influence them, or could reasonably be expected to influence them, in the performance 
of their official duties or was intended as a financial reward for any official action on 
their part. 

 
b. This subsection shall not apply to the acceptance of free invitations to 

charitable fund raising events, recognition dinners, or similar community events. 
 

6. Confidential information. Authority officers, members, staff or employees shall 
not disclose confidential information acquired by them in the course of their official duties unless 
having first obtained proper authorization for use in official business purposes. Additionally, or 
confidential information shall not be used such information to further their personal interests or 
those of the persons listed in Section 3.2(1), or used in a way that intentionally harms the 
financial interests of the Authority or its vendors. Confidential and proprietary information may 
include but is not limited to such things as pricing and financial data, customer names/addresses, 
private employee personnel data, including demographic and medical information, labor 
negotiations, information about current or prospective vendors, prospective air service 
development and marketing initiatives and other information not already made public. 

 
7. Representation.  Authority officers, members, staff or employees shall not: 

 
a. Receive or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for 

compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matters before any Authority 
agency of which they are an officer, member, staff or employee, or of any Authority 
agency over which they have jurisdiction, or to which they have the power to appoint any 
officer, member, staff or employee; or 

 
b. Receive or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for 

compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matter before any 
agency of the Authority, whereby their compensation is to be dependent or 



4  

contingent upon any action by the agency with respect to such matter. This subsection 
shall not prohibit the representation by an Authority officer, member, staff or employee 
before such other unaffiliated Authority agencies for fees based solely upon the 
reasonable value of the services. 

 
ARTICLE IV CIVIL SERVICES EMPLOYEES 

 

Section 4.1  This Code of Ethics shall not be deemed in any way to conflict with or modify 
any act of the Legislature of the State of New York relating to the civil service rights, privileges or 
status of any employees of the Authority and shall not apply wherever and to the extent that to do so 
would be to repeal or modify any such act or portion thereof. 

 
ARTICLE V SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 

Section 5.1 If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this Code of Ethics shall be 
adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or 
invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, 
section or part thereof directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have been 
rendered. 

 
Adopted:                     November 18, 2011, Resolution No.: 2011-32 
Revised:                      November 9, 2018, Resolution No.: 2018-37 
Revised:                      March 15, 2019, Resolution No.: 2019-xx 



{H3564331.1}  

   Resolution No. __   2019 
 
RESOLUTION AMENDING POLICY FOR MEMBERS REGARDING 
WRITTEN AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS CONCERNING 
THE SYRACUSE REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the “Authority”) is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 (the “Enabling Act”) and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as 

amended; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is a local public authority as defined in Section 2(2) of the 

New York Public Authorities Law; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2799-ddd of the Enabling Act the Authority has 11 

voting members and 8 non-voting members appointed by various municipalities and/or 

municipal bodies located within the Central New York region; and 

WHEREAS, in order for the Authority to efficiently and effectively carry out its purposes 

under the Enabling Act it is critical that communications between various Board members and 

Authority management be conducted in a reliable, efficient  and consistent manner; and 

WHEREAS, in connection therewith the Authority adopted a formal communication 

policy (the “Communication Policy”) by Resolution No. 1 of 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Boards Governance Committee, in conjunction with Authority 

management, has developed certain amendments to the Communication Policy to better serve the 

Authority and its Board members; and 

WHEREAS, the Governance Committee has provided to the Board a draft amended 

Communication Policy in the form as annexed to this Resolution and has recommended to the 

Board that it adopt the amended Communication Policy annexed hereto in order to foster 



{H3564331.1}  

reliable, efficient and consistent communications between Board Members and Authority 

management. 

 NOW THEREFORE, AFTER DUE DELIBERATION HAVING BEEN HAD 

THEREON, it is hereby, 

RESOLVED, that the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority hereby amends 

the Communications Policy in the form which is annexed hereto at Schedule “A”; and be it 

further 

RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

Resolution Adopted Date: March __, 2019 

Vote: Ayes         Nays:           Abstentions:          . 

Signed:                                                                         . 
    Secretary 
 
 
 



{H2696663.1} 1 

 
 
 
 

 
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

Authority Board Member Communications Policy 
Overview 

In order to comply with its record retention policy, it is the policy of the Syracuse Regional 
Airport Authority (the “Authority”) that Authority Board (Board) members engaging in 
Authority business should do so through either electronic (preferred) or written 
communicationofficial channels.  The Authority has established the following guidelines to 
follow when communicating regarding Authority business. 

 

Electronic Communication (Preferred) 

Board members will be issued an official e-mail address to be used during their term of service.  
All official electronic communications shall be sent to this e-mail address.  This includes 
communication from Authority staff and from other Board members.  All communications 
related to Authority business which are originated by Board members should be sent from their 
official e-mail address. 

All e-mail sent or received in furtherance of Authority business using an Authority e-mail 
address (i.e., syrairport.org or syrauthority.org), and any information or attachment within such 
an e-mail, shall be a record for purposes of records retention and compliance with any applicable 
federal or state laws, including freedom of information requests.  Board members shall have no 
reasonable expectation of privacy regarding any e-mail or attached materials sent or received via 
their Authority e-mail address. 

 

Written Communication 

Each Board member will designate to the Executive Director’s office a physical mailing address 
to be used for official Authority correspondence.  Any materials required to be transmitted to a 
Board member in written form shall be sent to this address.  Board members shall also be 
responsible to advise the Authority in writing of any change to such member’s physical mailing 
address. 

 

Adopted: January 15, 2016    Resolution No.: 01-2016 
Revised: March 15, 2019    Resolution No.: xx-2019 



 

 

 
 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

February 1, 2019 

 

 

These minutes reflect the activities of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority Finance Committee during the 

meeting held at Syracuse Hancock International Airport in the SRAA Board Room on Friday, February 1, 2019.   

 

The Meeting was called to order by Dr. Chin at 10:02am. 

 

I. Roll Call: 

In attendance:  Dr. Shiu-Kai Chin, Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano, Mr. William P. Fisher, Mr. Mike Lazar,  

Ms. Christina Callahan, Mr. Trent Amond, Ms. Maureen Fogarty, Mr. Bill Ryan and Ms. Linda Ryan. 

 

II. Executive Session: 

Dr. Chin noted Invite a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss “matters pertaining to : (1) 

proposed, pending or current litigation; (2) the financial, credit and employment history of particular 

persons or corporations; and (3) a proposed lease of real property by the Authority.  Mr. Fisher made 

the motion and Mr. Lazar seconded that motion.  The Committee came out of Executive Session without 

having taken any action. 

 

III. Old Business: 

A.  Terminal Improvement Project Funding Update: 

 

Mr. Amond gave an update on the Terminal Improvement Project funding sources, 17 million is scheduled 

to be financed by using our future FAA Entitlements.   We have been temporarily financing about that 

same amount through our Key Bank line of credit.  We need to have a longer term solution in place by the 

end of this fiscal year (end of June), to recognize that the 17 million is going to come in over the next 7 

years from our FAA entitlements.  We have asked Landrum and Brown to identify some options to finance 

this 17 million for the next few years.  We are bringing this to the Committee today to get concurrence to 

use Landrum and Brown to research what our best options are for financing this 17 million.  Mr. Amond 

went over the hand outs in the Finance Committee Packet.  The 1st report was the expense tracking of the 

projects.  The bottom line is the projected budget is $66 million, to date we have spent about $60 million, 

so we have about $6 million in outstanding invoices.  The 2nd report in the packet shows the total budget 

of 60.4 million.  We have the state grant of $35.8, the FFA entitlement and NY share of those projects is 

$17 million, we are still carrying a $1 million from Onondaga County reimbursement, and left to come 

from the Authority funds is about $6.3 million.   

 



 

 

Ms. Callahan mentioned that when we prepared our application to NYS for the TIP Project we 

incorporated a commitment made by the County to provide 1 million dollars for the paving portion of the 

TIP Project which would be a reimbursable item once the paving was complete.  At this time, we have not 

received any money from the County.  Ms. Callahan met with Brian Donnelly to go over their commitment.  

Mr. Donnelly mentioned that the money had not been approved at the legislature level and so they are 

now trying to develop a plan.  He wondered if we could come up with a more creative way to reimburse 

the Airport Authority such as waiving our deicing fee for the fugitive glycol that is treated by the County.  

They want to honor their commitment, they would like to work with us further on how to make this 

happen.  Mr. Fisher mentioned that in general the government has two parts, the Executive and the 

Legislature.  The appropriations are made by the Legislature and that we may want to reach out to Dave 

Knapp the Chair, to discuss this matter as well.   

 

Mr. Amond mentioned that Landrum and Brown has given us preliminary ideas on how to finance the $17 

million.  Given the time frame, Landrum and Brown thinks that the Line of Credit is the best way to go.  

They are subcontracting with Frasca and they are looking at loans and rates and would like to have 

something in place by June.  We would like to get more information from them before moving forward. 

Mr. Fisher mentioned that we couldn’t do a bond anticipation note because we did not have a credit 

history and we need to think about having a history for when we enter the market to do the garage.  Mr. 

Amond said it was a great point and the reason we are working with Landrum and Brown now is because 

whatever we put in place for this needs to either tie in to or not preclude us from what we do with the 

garage.   

 

IV. New Business: 

Mr. Amond gave an overview of the two RFP’s we are working on.  The IT – Information Management 

RFP is under development and we hope to get it out this spring.  The Snow Removal RFP is scheduled to 

be issued Monday of next week.  We have an ad-hoc committee that consists of John Carni, Ron Bowles, 

Antimo Pascarella, Mike Lazar, Trent Amond, Linda Ryan, and possibly Damion Ulatowski (we are waiting 

to hear back from him). The tentative timeline is awarding the Snow Removal contract mid-May and 

then we should have a signed contract by the end of June.  The Ad Hoc Committee will present their 

recommendation to the Board for approval. 

Mr. Ryan wanted to let the committee know that we are proceeding with the sale to SRC.  John Clark has 

been involved and we have met with the FAA.  They are also interested in the addition 15.99 acres to 

the East.  It is a wooded area and we are getting the appraisal for this next week.  It should come back to 

this Committee next Month for a sale.  He is also working a lease with Byrne Dairy for a 4.46 acre parcel 

on Taft Road where they would like to put in one of their stores.  This will come back to the Committee 

as well.   

V. Adjournment: 

Mr. Lazar made a motion to adjourn, Ms. Gagliano seconded that motion.  The meeting ended  

at 10:47. 



 

1 
 

 

 

Minutes of the Governance Committee Meeting  

of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

February 21, 2019 

Pursuant to notice duly given and posted, the Governance Committee meeting of the Syracuse 
Regional Airport Authority was called to order on Thursday, February 21, 2019 at 12:06 p.m. in 
the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority Board Room located in the Syracuse Hancock 
International Airport by Governance Committee Chair, Mr. William Fisher.  
 
Members Present:                                    Members Absent: 
                          
Mr. Bill Fisher  (Chair)     Mr. Kenneth Kinsey 
Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano (Ex-Officio)    Mr. Michael Quill    
Mr. Michael Lazar 
Mr. Damian Ulatowski 
 
Also Present: 
 
Mr. Trent Amond 
Mr. John Carni 
Ms. Joanne Clancy 
Mr. R. John Clark 
 
Roll Call 

As noted, all Governance Committee members were present, except Mr. Kenneth Kinsey and 
Mr. Michael Quill. 
 
Mr. Bill Fisher, Chair 

Governance Chair Fisher started by welcoming everyone to the scheduled Governance 
Committee Meeting at 12:06 p.m.  

Reading and Approval of the Minutes 

Having no objections or additions to the minutes from the October 18, 2018 Governance 
Committee meeting, a motion was made by Mr. Fisher and seconded by Ms. Gagliano and the 
minutes were unanimously approved. 
 
The motion was approved:  4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstain  

 
 



2 
 

New Business 

A. Facility Rental Policy 
 
Chair Fisher turned this topic over to Mr. Trent Amond. Mr. Amond explained a 
few concerns regarding outside events held in the airport conference rooms.  The 
management of these types of events require a considerable amount of staff time 
and the true expenses to the Authority that are incurred are not being reimbursed 
by those using the facility. Additionally, there is additional time spent by trade 
staff, electricians, airside escorting, direct administrative staff time, etc. for the 
use of these spaces. The current policy states that if an event is going to be open 
to the public, that the SRAA requires the user to utilize the in-house Creative 
Food Group for any catering needs.  However, if it is a “private” function, another 
caterer can be used for both food, beverages and alcohol.  Mr. Amond requested 
that the board consider altering the policy for alcohol/bar service, to be with 
Creative Food Groups only due to the liquor license, insurance requirements and 
other aspects and would like the board to discuss both of these topics regarding 
current policy and facility use request form updates.   
 
Mr. Fisher stated his appreciation that this policy has been brought back to the 
committee for discussion and that the SRAA is not looking to make a profit on 
event space. Mr. Fisher felt it wise to encourage folks to use our facility, but 
ensure that it not have a detrimental effect on the authority and staff and that our 
direct costs should be covered.  He noted that there should be less cost to Veterans 
groups or to other groups.  Mr. Lazar inquired about space availability and Mr. 
Amond noted that we have three main spaces – The large CR1114 conference 
room, the open space outside of the board room and the Veronica Room 
conference room. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding catering, insurance and other aspects of facility 
rental space and the current policy and it was determined that an updated policy 
will be brought to the board which will require the use of Create Food Groups 
unless the Executive Director deems that a certain event should be an exception 
so that there will be some flexibility.  Interim Executive Director Carni shared his 
concerns as well regarding other security factors.  Chair Gagliano agreed that with 
this being an airport, there are security rules and compliance factors that need to 
be considered. 

 
B. Onondaga Historical Association (OHA) Tours of the Aviation Museum 

 

Mr. Amond notified the board that the SRAA was surprised to find out in 
November, 2018 that the OHA would be giving paid tours of the new regional 
aviation museum here at the SYR airport. Unknown to the SRAA, one tour was 
booked and scheduled, but the OHA did not show up on that date to conduct the 
tour, so there were approximately 20 people in the SRAA reception area that were 
upset and looking for refunds on both the tour price paid and their airport parking.  
The OHA does not have a concession agreement with the SRAA to conduct 



3 
 

business at the airport.  Mr. Amond requested that the committee consider moving 
forward to draft a concession agreement with OHA.  Mr. Lazar stated that in that 
document, educational tours with schools should never be charged for any school 
group tours. 

 
C. ADA Self-Evaluation Process 

 
Ms. Debi Marshall, Human Resources Manager explained to the committee that 
in May, 2018, the SRAA had a mini-site review with the FAA regarding 
regulations and that one of the items that came out of that review was that it is a 
requirement to create a procedure to do is a procedure for self-evaluations of 
ADA requirements.  Ms. Marshall explained the regulations, process, procedure 
and recommended checklist for this process take place every 3 years along with 
the records retention of that process.   
 
Mr. Fisher stated the high priority that the board has in making things easier for 
anyone with a disability to have a first class experience at the SYR airport and 
that the board supports anything that furthers that mission.   
 
Ms. Marshall stated that an Airport Accessibility Committee is being established 
that includes not only staff and tenants, but also community groups on a quarterly 
basis beginning in March, 2019.  This committee’s goal will be to take look at 
processes, policies and procedures which are in line with our mission, compliance 
requirements and then develop best practices. 
 

D. Code of Ethics Proposed Changes 
 

Mr. Fisher and Mr. Amond explained the Code of Ethics Policy proposed changes 
and a discussion ensued with the committee. 
 
Having no further discussion regarding these proposed changes to the Code of 
Ethics Policy, a motion was made by Mr. Lazar and seconded by Mr. Ulatowski 
to approve this recommendation to the board at the next Regular Board Meeting 
to adopt these changes to the Code of Ethics policy. 
 
The motion was approved:  4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstain  

 
E. SRAA Official Communications 

 
Mr. Amond advised that the board approved in January, 2016 a communications 
policy that the SRAA is requesting a discussion for possible updates.  A 
discussion ensued regarding the use of official Syracuse Regional Authority email 
addresses, personal email addresses and administrative assistant’s being copied on 
authority business on non-authority email addresses.  Mr. Fisher discussed the 
Freedom of Information law and the purposes behind establishing and the use of 
official authority email addresses for the board members to comply with the use 



4 
 

of authority emails and the use of authority iPads. Mr. Fisher cautioned the 
members regarding FOIL requests and how that could affect personal email 
accounts.  Mr. Fisher recommended the continued use of the official email 
address but with the option to also copy private emails as needed to assist in 
communication efforts.  Mr. Fisher’s understanding is that the original record is 
the one responsible for retention, not one that a member would forward for 
convenience in order to print or copy on a personal address or device. Mr. Fisher 
recommended that members work with the SRAA IT staff for support in these 
efforts. Mr. Lazar discussed best practices that he has used with the IT department 
that have worked well for him.  Mr. Amond requested that this item be put on the 
next Regular Board meeting for discussion and explanation of the policy. Mr. 
Lazar and Ms. Gagliano both suggested this topic and others be discussed for 
agenda topics for new board orientation along with tours of the airport. Mr. Fisher 
suggested electronic communication be listed first as the preferred method instead 
of written communication in the policy and suggested a policy update should be 
brought to the next Regular Board meeting. 
 

F. SRAA Committee Meeting agenda content 
 
Mr. Amond shared a copy of the 2019 SRAA Committee Meeting Schedule with 
the group, which specifically shows basic topics that are generally discussed each 
year on a rolling calendar basis.  This will help the board and committee members 
be more aware of which topics will generally be on future agendas throughout the 
year for discussion during the calendar/fiscal years. 
 

Adjournment 
 
Having no other topics brought to the board, a motion was made by Mr. Ulatowski and seconded 
by Ms. Gagliano to adjourn the meeting.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:55 p.m.  



 

1 
 

 

 

Minutes of the Audit Committee Meeting  

of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

February 28, 2019 

 

Pursuant to notice duly given and posted, the Governance Committee meeting of the Syracuse 
Regional Airport Authority was called to order on Thursday, February 28, 2019 at 11:12 a.m. in 
the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority Board Room located in the Syracuse Hancock 
International Airport by Governance Committee Chair, Dr. Donna DeSiato.  
 
Members Present:                                    Members Absent: 
                          
Dr. Donna DeSiato (Chair)    Mr. Kenneth Kinsey 
Ms. Jo Anne Gagliano (Ex-Officio)   Mr. Robert Simpson    
Mr. Michael Lazar 
 
Also Present: 
 
Mr. Trent Amond 
Mr. John Carni 
Ms. Joanne Clancy 
Mr. Chip Clark – D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP 
 
Roll Call 

As noted, all Audit Committee members were present, except Mr. Kenneth Kinsey and Mr. 
Robert Simpson. 
 
Dr. DeSiato, Chair 

Audit Committee Chair DeSiato started by welcoming everyone to the scheduled Audit 
Committee Meeting at 11:12 a.m.  

Reading and Approval of the Minutes 

Having no objections or additions to the minutes from the February 15, 2018 Audit Committee 
meeting, a motion was made by Mr. Lazar and seconded by Dr. DeSiato and the minutes were 
unanimously approved. 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

New Business 

 
1. Review of Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 

 
Chair DeSiato turned the meeting over to Mr. Chip Clark from D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP, the 
authority’s independent auditor. Mr. Clark gave a background of the relationship with 
D’Arcangelo and the authority and presented the committee with a draft packet of financial and 
compliance reports.  Mr. Clark informed the committee that the Executive Summary Report is 
what will be presented to the SRAA Board.  The required letters were reviewed and described as 
clean with one issue regarding the timeliness of the closing and filing with the ABO 90 day 
requirement to report after fiscal year closing.  This is considered a significant deficiency. 
However, Mr. Clark indicated that the ABO 90 day requirement is historically difficult to meet 
because of how things are structured with the City of Syracuse owning the assets.  Mr. Clark 
explained that they are required to put this in the letter since it is a compliance issue with the 
ABO.  Mr. Clark stated there has been substantial improvement relative to the timing of getting 
the information, although he and others do not know how much further this timeframe could be 
reduced because the City of Syracuse owns the property, therefore, the authority is a component 
of the City of Syracuse.  As there are construction projects, etc. there has to be a reconciliation 
between the city and the SRAA, where the SRAA is transferring things from the Authority’s 
accounts to the City’s books.  A discussion ensued regarding past practice of submitting 
unaudited reports in an effort to comply with the time limit, but those were not accepted. It was 
determined that future changes in the timing of the 90 day requirement to be extended were 
highly unlikely and that the SRAA would continue to work towards that goal.  Mr. Clark 
reviewed all of the financial packets and statements with the committee.  The SRAA is in 
compliance with all the GASB’s.  Of note was a new GASB compliance requirement, number 
75, the post-employment benefit accrual. Mr. Lazar led a discussion regarding potential funding 
of GASB 75 liability obligations and whether a reserve should be created, but there is no legal 
mechanism to create such an account. 

Mr. Clark stated that the internal controls were tested, the audit went well and the SRAA 
received the highest level of opinion possible in an audit.  

Dr. DeSiato thanked Mr. Clark for a great overview of the Draft Audit and would like to 
recognize Ms. Maureen Fogarty, Mr. Amond and all of the accounting staff for their exemplary 
job once again this past year which shows that there are good systems in place to be above and 
beyond in compliance requirements.  Dr. DeSiato recommended that the draft audit be brought to 
the next Regular Board Meeting for approval. 

The motion was to recommend to the board the approval of the audit was made by Mr. 
Lazar and seconded by Ms. Gagliano.   
 

Mr. Amond notified the board that moving forward, a best practice is to go out for an RFP of 
Audit services and suggested that be put on the next regular board meeting agenda for 
consideration.  If D’Arcangelo is selected after that process, Mr. Clark, per ABO requirements, 
would not be the partner that we would move forward with as there is a requirement to replace 
the partner every 5 years. 



3 
 

Executive Session 

Chair DeSiato made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a variety of matters 
pertaining to the employment history of particular persons or corporations. 

The motion was approved by Mr. Lazar and seconded by Ms. Gagliano.  Audit 
committee members went into executive session at 12:03 p.m. 
 
Executive session ended at 12:16 p.m. No action was taken. 

 
Chair DeSiato recommended that the RFP process be undertaken.  Mr. Amond will prepare the 
information for the RFP. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no other topics brought to the committee, a motion was made by Mr. Lazar and seconded 
by Ms. Gagliano to adjourn the meeting.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:24 p.m.  


	March 15, 2019 Board Meeting Agenda
	February 1, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Required Communication with Governance Letter
	Required Communication of Areas in Need of Improvement
	Uniform Guidance and Government Auditing Standards Reports
	Management's Discussion and Analysis and basic Financial Statements
	Passenger Facilities Guide for Public Agencies
	Department of Transportation Single Audit Report
	Resolution - Fiscal Year End 2018 Draft Audit
	Resolution - Ethics Policy Amendment
	Code of Ethics proposed changes
	Resolution - Written and Electronic Communications
	Communications Policy proposed amendment
	Minutes - Finance Committee Meeting February 1, 2019
	Minutes - Governance Committee Meeting February 21, 2019
	Minutes - Audit Committee Meeting February 28, 2019



